¥i¥ Shropshire

Council

Shropshire Council

Legal and Democratic Services
Shirehall

Abbey Foregate

Shrewsbury

SY2 6ND

Date: Tuesday, 14 March 2023

Committee: Communities Overview Committee

Date: Wednesday, 22 March 2023
E Time: 1.30 pm
Venue: Shrewsbury/Oswestry Room, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury,
Shropshire, SY2 6ND

You are requested to attend the above meeting. The Agenda is attached
There will be some access to the meeting room for members of the press and public, but

this will be limited. If you wish to attend the meeting please email
democracy@shropshire.gov.uk to check that a seat will be available for you.

Please click here to view the livestream of the meeting on the date and time stated on the
agenda. The recording of the event will also be made available shortly after the
meeting on the Shropshire Council Youtube Channel Here

Tim Collard
Assistant Director - Legal and Governance

Members of Communities Overview Committee

Ted Clarke Robert Macey (Chairman)
Nick Hignett (Vice Chairman) Dan Morris

Mark Jones Vivienne Parry

Duncan Kerr Mark Williams

Christian Lea

Your Committee Officer is:

Emily Marshall Committee Officer
Tel: 01743 257717
Email: emily.marshall@shropshire.gov.uk

www.shropshire.gov.uk
General Enquiries: 0845 678 9000

Printed on recycled paper



mailto:democracy@shropshire.gov.uk
https://www.youtube.com/user/ShropshireCouncil/featured
https://www.youtube.com/user/ShropshireCouncil/streams

AGENDA
Apologies

To receive apologies for absence.

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

Members are reminded that they must declare their disclosable pecuniary
interests and other registrable or non-registrable interests in any matter being
considered at the meeting as set out in Appendix B of the Members’ Code of
Conduct and consider if they should leave the room prior to the item being
considered. Further advice can be sought from the Monitoring Officer in advance
of the meeting.

Minutes

To consider the Minutes of the Communities Overview Committee meeting held
on 25" January 2023. Minutes to follow.

Public Question Time
To receive any public questions or petitions from the public, notice of which has

been given in accordance with Procedure Rule 14. The deadline for this
meeting is 5.00 p.m. on Thursday, 16™ March 2023.

Member Question Time
To receive any questions of which members of the Council have given notice.

Deadline for notification for this meeting is 5.00 p.m. on Thursday, 16™ March
2023.

Social Housing In Context: Understanding Shropshire's Housing Market
(Pages 1 -22)

Report of The Assistant Director of Homes and Communities is attached.

Contact: Jane Trethewey - 01743 258913

Work Programme



8 Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Communities Overview Committee will take place on
Wednesday, 3" May 2023.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Communities Overview ltem
A . )
ﬁ@ Shropshlre Committee
@ Council
22 March 2023 Public

a3 v
Healthy @ Healthy
People Environment

Healthy
Organisation

Healthy
Economy

Social Housing in Context: Understanding
Shropshire’s Housing Market

Responsible Officer: Jane Trethewey

email:  jane.trethewey@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 1 01743 258913

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder): = Dean Catrroll

1. Synopsis

The Shropshire Plan recognises that the housing market, including housing delivery, is
key to ensuring a healthy economy. The housing market needs to be understood not
only in terms of supply and demand, but also in the context of current and future
demographic and socio-economic pressures upon the housing market.

2. Executive Summary

2.1. This report follows on from a report presented to this Committee in January 2023,
‘Understanding the social housing market in Shropshire’, and seeks to set out an
understanding of the housing market as a whole.

2.2. Therefore, it considers evidence which is not restricted to housing supply and
demand, but population change and demographics, health, well-being, deprivation
and the economy.

2.3. The report sets out housing pressures, including barriers to accessing open market

housing; and finally sets the role of social housing, especially in meeting the
Council's statutory responsibilities.

Page 1


mailto:jane.trethewey@shropshire.gov.uk

2.4.

In conclusion the report proposes a range of questions which Members are asked to
consider in preparation for a proposed workshop to be held in Summer 2023.

3. Recommendations

3.1

Members are asked to consider both the evidence base setout in sections 5 to 10
of this report and the questions in section 11.

Report

4. Background

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4,

4.5.

4.6.

On 25 January 2023 this Committee received a report, ‘Understanding the social
housing market in Shropshire’, which considered housing need, affordable housing
supply, gaps in the current provision and current issues and pressures for social
landlords. It is important not to consider social housing in a vacuum, but instead to
understand its role and function within the housing market as a whole.

The Healthy Economy priority of the Shropshire Plan recognises housing as a
fundamental driver, with a key sub-objective:

Establishing and maintaining a shared understanding of cross tenure housing
need and an agreed strategic delivery framework of the Council and partners,
reviewing the Housing Strategy by June 2023 and working to adopt the revised
strategy by March 2025.

Understanding the housing market, and with that cross-tenure housing need in its
widest form, is an important backdrop to the development of a housing strategy for
Shropshire. Moreover, it is good practice for the Local Housing Authority (LHA) to
keep abreast of changing needs, including potentials for intervention, so as to be at
the fore when there are opportunities to access subsidy or to influence national

policy.

Housing demand and need is subject to a number of variables, not only whether an
area is attractive, but a range of socio-economic issues. In order to retain and
attract particular workforces by ensuring the right mix of housing in terms of size,
location and cost is an important variable. Whilst social housing has a very
important role to play in meeting housing need, it faces many pressures which
include statutory responsibilities.

This report brings together data from a number of sources to provide a full
understanding of the housing market in terms of key influences, including population
change and demographics; health; well-being; deprivation; and the economy. It
then provides data relating to housing supply; housing pressures, including barriers
to accessing open market housing; and finally sets out the role of social housing,
especially in meeting the Council’s statutory responsibilities. It does not seek to
propose conclusions, but rather sets out the data, and legislative and policy context.

The final part of the report proposes a range of questions which Members are asked
to consider in preparation for a proposed workshop to be held in summer 2023.

Page 2



5. Population and demographics

5.1

5.2.

5.3.

Our future Housing Strategy must respond to continuing demographic change. The
population of Shropshire increased by 5.7% to around 323,600 over the period 2011
to 2021, this being lower than the England and regional increases of 6.6% and 6.2%
respectively?.

During 2011 to 2021 the number of residents aged 50 to 64 years increased by just
over 9,300 (an increase of 14.7%), whilst the number of residents between 35 and
49 years fell by around 9,600 (15.1% decrease)?.

As can be seen by Figure 1, Shropshire has an ageing population. The median age
of residents is 48, this compares to the England and regional median age of 403.

Figure 1: 2021 comparative population statistics

25%

20%

15%

10%

5%

0%

Aged 14 Aged15to Aged30to Aged45to Aged60to Aged 75to Aged 90
years and 29 years 44 years 59 years 74 years 89 years years and
under over

EEngland ®West Midlands Shropshire

Source: 2021 Census

5.4.

At 2021 12% of the population of Shropshire was aged 75 or over (Figure 1); by
2043 this is expected to increase to 19%*, this compares with the England and
regional percentages of 13% and 12% respectively.

6. Health, well-being and deprivation

6.1.

Good housing is a critical contributor to our health and wellbeing, and the data
below shows a great variation in the opportunities available to people to access
good homes across Shropshire. On average people live longer in Shropshire as
compared to both the West Midlands region and England.

1 How life has changed in Shropshire: Census 2021 (ons.gov.uk)
2 How life has changed in Shropshire: Census 2021 (ons.gov.uk)
3 How life has changed in Shropshire: Census 2021 (ons.gov.uk)
4 Population projections for local authorities: Table 2 - Office for National Statistics

Page 3



https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/censusareachanges/E06000051/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/censusareachanges/E06000051/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/censusareachanges/E06000051/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/datasets/localauthoritiesinenglandtable2

Figure 2: Average mortality rates in 2021

st

West Midlands region _

Erdand

74 76 78 80 82 84 86
Female m Male

Source: Local Authority Health Profiles - OHID (phe.org.uk)

6.2. Personal well-being estimates show that Shropshire residents feelings are inline
with the England and above the West Midland’s averages as to life satisfaction,
feeling that things are worthwhile and being happy, whilst levels of anxiety are
below the England and West Midland’s averages.

Figure 3: 2021 average (mean) personal well-being estimates
9.0

8.0

7.0

6.0

5.0

4.0

3.0

2.0

1.0

0.0

Life satisfaction Worthwhile Happiness Anxiety
mEngland ®West Midlands Shropshire

Source: ) Personal well-being estimates by local authority - Office for National Statistics
(ons.gov.uk)

6.3. When considering the overall index of multiple deprivation, mapped at Figure 4
below, only two Lower-layer Super Output Areas (LSOAS) within Shropshire fall
within the 10% most deprived nationally, which are within Harlescott and Ludlow
East. A further six LSOAs fall into the 20% most deprived nationally, these being
Monkmoor, Oswestry South, Meole, Castlefields and Ditherington, Market Drayton
East, Sundorne and Oswestry West.

6.4. A further measure is ‘barriers to housing and services deprivation’, mapped at
Figure 5, which calculates the physical and financial accessibility of housing and
key local services. The indicators fall into two sub-sections: ‘geographical barriers’,

Page 4


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles
https://www.ons.gov.uk/datasets/wellbeing-local-authority/editions/time-series/versions/3
https://www.ons.gov.uk/datasets/wellbeing-local-authority/editions/time-series/versions/3

which relate to the physical proximity of local services (road distances to a post
office, primary school, general store or supermarket, and GP surgery), and ‘wider
barriers’ which includes issues relating to access to housing such as overcrowding,
homelessness and affordability. Further details can be found at IMD Shropshire.

Figure 4: Overall Index of Multiple Deprivation

Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Gove mment, © crown copyrightzos [ =

Office for National Statistics,© Crown copyright 2019

- 10 = least depnived

Figure 5: Index of Multiple Deprivation — Barriers to Housing and Services
Deprivation

Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government, @ Crown copyright 2019 [ =
Office for Mational Statistics, & Crown copyright 2019 - 10 = Least deprived

Page 5


https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/information-intelligence-and-insight/facts-and-figures/index-of-multiple-deprivation-imd/index-of-multiple-deprivation-imd-2019/

7. Theeconomy

7.1.

7.2.

Housing which is affordable and accessible to the workforce is a key contributor to
the economic success of our communities and the survival of our businesses.
Shropshire has a typical economy for a rural location, with small businesses
predominating, and with land-based industries and associated sectors like food and
drink production and tourism of particular significance. The sector mix in Shropshire
influences wage levels and productivity, both of which have historically been much
lower than national benchmarks.

Figure 6 shows that 59% of the Shropshire population is of traditional working age
(16-64), this being less than the England and regional proportions of 63% and 62%
respectively.

Figure 6: Percentage of population aged 16 to 64 in 2021

64%
63%
62%
61%
60%
59%
58%
57%
56%

Source:

7.3.

England West Midlands Shropshire

How life has changed in Shropshire: Census 2021 (ons.gov.uk)

Figure 7 shows that in Shropshire 80% of working age people were economically
active (working or seeking work) in the year ending September 2022, which equates
to 152,700 people. 76.6% (146,500) of working age people were employed at this
time, with 5,300 unemployed but seeking work, giving an unemployment rate of
3.5%. This is comparable to the national and regional unemployment rates of 3.7%
and 4.9% respectively. Most people in employment are employees, but self-
employment is high in Shropshire - 14% of the working age population as compared
to a national and regional rates of 9.2% and 8.4% respectively.

Figure 7: Labour market statistics for the year ending September 2022

90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

Source:

Economically Employees Self-Employed Unemployed
Active Employment

® Great Britain ™ West Midlands Shropshire

ONS annual population survey

Page 6


https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/censusareachanges/E06000051/

7.4.

Figure 8: Jobs density

Jobs density is the level of jobs per resident aged 16-64. For example, a job
density of 1.0 would mean that there is one job for every resident aged 16-64.
Shropshire has fewer jobs than it does resident workers, meaning that more people
commute out of the county for work than commute in. However, as can be seen in
Figure 8, over the period 2011 to 2021 Shropshire’s jobs density has increased
proportionately higher in comparison to England and the West Midlands.

2011 2021
England 0.78 0.86
West Midlands 0.74 0.81
Shropshire 0.75 0.85

Source:

Dataset _Selection - Query - Nomis - Official Census and Labour Market Statistics

(nomisweb.co.uk)

7.5.

As shown in Figure 9 the six top employment sectors are health; retail;
manufacturing; agriculture; education; accommodation and food services.
Together, these account for 57.5% of all employment in Shropshire. Within
manufacturing, food and drink processing is particularly significant, with Shropshire
home to several important employers in this field (for example, Muller, Arla, and
ABP). Construction, professional, scientific and technical and business
administration services all account for at least 5% of employment.

Figure 9: Breakdown of Employment by Sector, 2021

Source:

7.6.

Agriculture,
8.20%

Manufacturing,
8.50%

Retail, 8.90%

Accommodation & Food
Services, 7.80%

ONS Business Register and Employment Survey 2021

The importance of different sectors can be measured using location quotients

(LQs), which show how important individual sectors are compared with the national
average (Figure 10). An LQ of one means that the sector is equally important to
Shropshire as it is nationally. A score above one denotes higher importance while a
score of less than one means that the sector is under-represented. Aside from
agriculture, where the relative importance is extreme, motor trades, wholesale and

Page 7


https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/query/select/getdatasetbytheme.asp?opt=3&theme=&subgrp=
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/query/select/getdatasetbytheme.asp?opt=3&theme=&subgrp=

health are all slightly over-represented in Shropshire. In contrast, there is
comparatively less employment in Shropshire ininformation and communication,
finance and insurance, professional, scientific and technical and in business
administration.

Figure 10: Relative Importance of Sectors to the Shropshire Economy

5.9

09 1111 13,4 1.0 1.1

6 & O A2 A N DS @AY Y R SN aan
\(;\‘\\Q"_‘v;\“ $& &0 ¥ LT P S SAP M NP R e
E T FTEF TS ‘3\}@ K & & ¢ &R &
¥ @ & o R & R é'_’\ef & o & &
S & & E <& e~ 3 & N & & &
& & S & & @ @ &° &
© @ ) NS PRI &
\S-\Q,‘ & q;’ O .\Q‘(\ Q{(‘ Q?f’ . Qef’ & s
& S E &
= < & S
N N S
mmm Shropshire LQ, - -National Average

Source: ONS Business Register and Employment Survey 2021

7.7.

7.8.

7.9.

7.10.

Shrewsbury is the main employment hub in Shropshire, with the other main market
towns also supplying a significant share of employment (Figure 11).

Shropshire’s economy was worth just over £6 billion in 2020, having contracted
during the year as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. This follows a period of
relatively low but sustained growth.

Gross value added® per capita is low compared with the national average (£18,748
compared with £29,063). This figure is suppressed by the relatively low size of the
workforce in relation to the size of the population, but also by the predominance of
industries where GVA generation is comparatively low. The amount of GVA per
hour worked is used as a measure of productivity, as it effectively strips out the
socio-demographic factors such as population age structure and commuting
patterns which can skew per capita data. This shows that GVA per hour worked in
Shropshire stood at £28.36 in 2020, £9.93 less than in England.

Figure 12 shows median gross weekly earnings for people who work in Shropshire
but who do not necessarily live there (workplace earnings) alongside earnings for
people who live in Shropshire but who do not necessarily work there (residents’
earnings). In 2022, average residents’ earnings, at £637.40 gross per week for full-
time workers, were £39.30 higher than workplace earnings (£598.10). Over the last
decade workplace earnings growth stood at 46% compared with 35% growth for
resident’s earnings. Compared with the national average, workplace wages were
£47.50 lower in Shropshire in 2022 (7.4% less). Residents’ earnings were much
more closely aligned to the national average (just £8.40 less).

5 GVA (Gross Value Added) is the measure of the value of goods and senices produced in an area

Page



Figure 11. Business Register and Employment Survey employee and employment
estimates

[ J5-42s

[ 426 - 1000
I 001- 2000
I 2001 - 4250
Il 251 - 7500

Source: ONS Business Register of Employment Survey at LSOA level

Figure 12: Shropshire Workplace and Resident’s Earnings

700.0
650.0
600.0
550.0
500.0

450.0 /

400.0

s

350.0

300.0
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

e \\Orkplace == Residents

Source: ONS Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings, Workplace and Residents

8. Housing supply

8.1. Taking into account the picture set out above of Shropshire’s population and its
health, wellbeing, and economic profile, our housing provision can now be
considered in this context. Shropshire contains just over 150,735 dwellings®. At
any one time around 4,000 dwellings are empty’, which equates to approximately

6 Live tables on dwelling stock (including vacants) - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) and Shropshire Council
Five Year Housing Land Supply Statement
7 Council Taxbase 2022 in England - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

Page 9



https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/live-tables-on-dwelling-stock-including-vacants
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/council-taxbase-2022-in-england

8.2.

3% of stock. Almost 1,6008 dwellings are second homes, this being just over one
per cent of all dwellings.

Over the ten-year period 2012-22 net additional dwellings as a result of new build,
conversion, change of use and demolition totalled 14,737, therefore an average of
1,474 per annum (Figure 13).

Figure 13: Net additional dwellings

Year Net add_itional
dwellings
2021-22 1,485
2020-21 1,586
2019-20 1,554
2018-19 1,843
2017-18 1,876
2016-17 1,910
2015-16 1,402
2014-15 1,155
2013-14 1,079
2012-13 847
Source: Shropshire Council Five Year Housing Land Supply Statement:

https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/planning-policy/monitoring-and-site-assessment/five-year-housing-

land-supply-statem ent/

8.3.

8.4.

As shown in Figure 14, when compared to England and the West Midlands,
Shropshire has higher levels of owner occupation and lower levels of both social
and private rented accommodation.

Over two-thirds of Shropshire’s housing stock comprises dwellings with three or
more dwellings, which is higher than the England and West Midlands averages.
Only seven per cent of dwelling stock in Shropshire only has one-bedroom, this
compares to the England and regional averages of 12% and 10% respectively
(Figure 15).

Figure 14: Tenure breakdown

80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

Source:

Oowns Shared  Social rented Private
outrightor  ownership rented
with a

mortgage or
loan

® England West Midlands Shropshire

2021 Census

8 Council Taxbase 2022 in England - GOV.UK_(www.goV.uk)

Page 10



https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/planning-policy/monitoring-and-site-assessment/five-year-housing-land-supply-statement/
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/planning-policy/monitoring-and-site-assessment/five-year-housing-land-supply-statement/
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/council-taxbase-2022-in-england

Figure 15: Number of bedrooms in dwellings as a percentage of all housing stock

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
] ] L

30%
20%
10%
0%
England West Midlands Shropshire
®m 1 bedroom 2 bedrooms =3 bedrooms ®4 or more bedrooms
Source: Number of bedrooms - Office for National Statistics (ons.gov.uk)

8.5. In 2021 21% of dwellings in Shropshire dated to pre-1900, as compared to the
England and West Midlands proportions of 15% and 11% respectively®. Figure 16
shows the median build period of dwellings in Shropshire by LSOA.

Figure 16: Age of dwellings

Median Build Period of Residential Properties in Shropshire by LSOA —‘L

Scale - 1:368,643

Build Period | | 19451954 [ 1983-1992
I 1000-1918 [ | 1955-1964 [ 1993-1999
I 1919-1929 [ 1 1965-1972 [Jl Pre-1900
[ 1930-1939 [I] 1973-1982

© Crown copyright and database rights 2019 OS 100049049.
Source: Council Tax Stock of Properties, Table CTSOP4.0:
Number of properties by Council Tax band, property build
period, VOA's administrative database as at 31 March 2018.
https:/iwww.gov. uk/g isti il-t:
stock-of-properties-2018

Inset Map of
Shrewsbury

9 Council Tax: stock of properties, 2021 - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

Page 11



https://www.ons.gov.uk/datasets/TS050/editions/2021/versions/3
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/council-tax-stock-of-properties-2021

9. Housing pressures

Local housing demand

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

The 2022 Housing Needs Survey asked a random sample of residents, stratified by
Place Plan Area, about their intentions of moving over the next five years. Figure
17 shows the indicative gross need for both existing and concealed households
intending to move by their first-choice parish, by Place Plan Area. In other words,
the number of homes required in each Place Plan area to meet the housing needs
indicated by this sample survey, without taking account of housing churn, nor
demand from people moving into Shropshire.

Figure 18 shows the minimum number of bedrooms required by existing and
concealed households intending to move as percentages. Figure 19 then compares
this bedroom need with the existing stock profile. This indicates an insufficient level
of one- and two-bedroom dwellings across Shropshire.

It should be noted that draft Policy DP1 of the draft Local Plan sets out that on sites
of five or more dwellings:

a) In locations where in the last five years a Local Housing Need Survey has been
undertaken through the ‘Right Home Right Place’ initiative or an equivalent
survey endorsed by Shropshire Council, at least 50% of open market dwellings
will reflect the profile of housing need established within the survey. The
remainder of the open market dwellings will include a suitable mix and variety of
dwelling sizes; or

b) At least 25% of open market dwellings will have two bedrooms or less. At least
a further 25% of open market housing will have three bedrooms or less. The
remainder of the open market dwellings will include a suitable mix and variety of
dwelling sizes.

Figure 17: Indicative gross need for all tenures over next five years by Place Plan

Area

5000
4500
4000
3500
3000
2500
2000
1500
1000

500

Source:

> < X N 2 g
o\‘\ b\o$ & o{{S‘ {\o’b \’_\.OQ &Q} \)& (\\00 $Q§° \{\00 °)Qsz,‘\ . \((\e \(,\&o(‘ /z?)é ?S& ‘006 . \&Qﬂ
S & & L& S & S N S A G N S X
o L QO N O ¥ e
» SN & LSRR RS
& & Q BN & 3
> @0 /z,( O Q,\L’ (\6
& \ S 2
Y &
&
X
®&
2022 Housing Needs Survey

Page 12



Figure 18: Bedrooms needed for existing and concealed households planning to
move in the next five years by Place Plan Area of first choice parish

0"6
2
xQ
&0« Qo°
N 00 (\\' OQ o o
$ P & @ Sy
& T &S e 0‘\? & o 3 &
& PO s T O o @ &SN e O a3
O K F L F S $ & € & & &
S Q)\\ Q,\O N C}(b Q>\® \8@ R Q{b @\Q @\} O% %‘(\ %‘(\

N e
100% I I I I . I

90%

S
@0 @\\ ?s\
80%
70%

[ 0

60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

B One BTwo ®Three ®Four HFjve HSjx

R

Source: 2022 Housing Needs Survey

Figure 19: Shropshire average bedroom need as compared with existing housing
stock

Shropshire-wide Existing housing stock
average need (2021 census)
1 bedroom 16% 7%
2 bedrooms 46% 24%
3 bedrooms 30% 42%
4 or more bedrooms 7% 26%
Source: 2022 Housing Needs Survey and Number of bedrooms - Office for National Statistics

(ons.gov.uk)

9.4. Figure 20 below shows the responses to a question in the 2022 Housing Needs
Survey asked to household members aged 55 years or over, “Thinking about the
future, in order to remain living independently would you or another person in your
household prefer to have support to remain living in your current home or instead
move to alternative accommodation?”.

9.5. Of those respondents who stated they wished to move to alternative
accommodation (Figure 21), the overwhelming need was for bungalows (47%),
followed by houses (22%). Around a quarter of respondents stated that they wished
to move to a form of older persons or age-restricted housing.

Page 13


https://www.ons.gov.uk/datasets/TS050/editions/2021/versions/3
https://www.ons.gov.uk/datasets/TS050/editions/2021/versions/3

Figure 20: Over 55’s future housing intentions

Don't know -

Move to alternative accommodation -

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80%
Source: 2022 Housing Needs Survey

Figure 21: Residents who are 55 and over planning to move in the next five years
by choice of accommodation

= Bungalow

= House

= Retirement living accommodation
Age-restricted market housing

= Residential or nursing home

= Extra care sheltered housing or closed care
= Flat

= Sheltered housing

= Co-housing

= Wheelchair accessible accommodation

= Co-living

= Other

Source: 2022 Housing Needs Survey
Accessing owner-occupation

9.6. Although many people aspire to owner-occupation, affordability can make this
difficult. Figure 22a shows how the median house price to median income ratio, this
being the median house price divided by the median income, in Shropshire is above
the regional average and in line with the England average. In addition, the lower
guartile house price to lower quartile income ratio in Shropshire, this considered
entry level for owner-occupation, is above both regional and England averages.

Figure 22a: Ratios of house price to earnings at year ending September 2021

Ratio of median house price to | Ratio of lower quartile house price to
median gross annual earnings | lower quartile gross annual earnings

England 9.05 8.04
West Midlands 7.50 7.42
Shropshire 9.05 8.40
Source: House price to workplace-based earnings ratio - Office for National Statistics
(ons.gov.uk)

Page 14


https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/housing/datasets/ratioofhousepricetoworkplacebasedearningslowerquartileandmedian
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/housing/datasets/ratioofhousepricetoworkplacebasedearningslowerquartileandmedian

9.7. Additional research undertaken by the Council on affordability ratios (Figure 22b)
shows that both the median and lower quartile house price to gross household
income ratios in Shropshire are higher than the regional and England averages.
What is particularly important to note is how this research shows that the lower
guartile house price to the lower quartile income ratio is almost 9. Therefore,
despite there being more affordable areas of Shropshire, household incomes are so
low that residents will find it even less possible to access home ownership in these
locations.

Figure 22b: Ratios of house price to household income in 2022

Ratio of median house Ratio of lower quartile house
price to median gross price to lower quartile gross
household income household income

England 6.9 8.4

West Midlands 6.6 8.8

Shropshire 7.0 8.9

Source: HM Land Registry Price Paid Data and CACI Paycheck Data

9.8. Figure 23 shows the median house prices and Figure 24 the median house price to
median gross household income ratio across Shropshire by Election Division. This
analysis shows that accessing owner-occupation is found across Shropshire, with
house price to income ratios being particularly high in rural areas.

Figure 23: Median House Prices
Median House Prices (2022) by Electoral Division

Median House Price

I 149575 -£181,500
[ £181.500 - £205.248
[ £205.245 - £225.000
[ £225.000 - £250,000
[[_] £250.000 -£270,500
[ £270500 - £300,000
[ £200000 - £325,750
[ £225.750 - £353,000
[ £352.000 - £475.000
Source: HM Land Registry, Price Paid data 2022 © Crown copyright 2023 I £475000 -£510,000
® Crown copyright and database rights 2023 OS 100049049

Page 15




Figure 24: Median Affordability Ratio
Median Affordability Ratio (2022) by Electoral Division

Affordability
Ratio

Il :0-55

- 56-6.1

) 6288

[ er-1o

]:| 71-75

[]7e-78

] 75-8.1

I 82-94

- 95-11.1

Source: HM Land Registry, Price Paid daa 2022 © Crown copyright 2023 —
CACI Paycheck Gross Household Incomedata 2022. - ’

® Crown copyright and database rights 2023 OS 100049049
Accessing private rented accommodation
9.9. Ascan be seen from Figure 14, the percentage of private rented housing in

Shropshire is below the England average, but in line with the regional picture.

Indicative median weekly private rental prices in Shropshire are shown in Figure 25.

Figure 25: Median weekly private rental prices

Studio One- Two- Three- Four or more-
Room . bedroom bedroom | bedroom bedroom
(bedsit) . . : .
dwelling dwelling dwelling dwelling
England £101.08 | £144.23 £165.00 £183.00 £206.54 £346.15
West Midlands £98.08 £109.62 £126.92 £155.77 £183.46 £276.92
Shropshire £86.08 £114.23 £141.92 £173.08 £253.85
Source: Private rental market summary statistics in England - Office for National Statistics

(ons.gov.uk)

9.10. Working age households who are in receipt of Housing Benefit or Universal Credit
for housing rental costs are assessed in terms of bedroom eligibility and the rate of
Local Housing Allowance (LHA) for the size of their dwelling. The Valuation Office
Agency sets the LHA based on geographies called Broad Rental Market Areas

Page 16


https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/housing/datasets/privaterentalmarketsummarystatisticsinengland
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/housing/datasets/privaterentalmarketsummarystatisticsinengland

(BRMASs). The LHA is based on households being able to access the lowest 30% of
rental accommodation. Shropshire is covered by four BRMAs (Figure 26); Figure
27 contains LHA rates for these BRMASs.

Figure 26:

Broad Rental Market Areas (BRMAs)

)(
3

} R 2
- %

BROAD RENTAL MARKET AREA BDUNDARIES AND
OVERU\P WI'TH SHROPSNIRE COUNCIL I\REJ\

REESTERS ™
omn

[Cerua
D_) reopstere Counal Boundary

e i, st (O i nmewd ede T Oy e

Source. Search for Local Housrnq Allowance rates by postcode or local authority : DirectGov_-
LHA Rates (voa.gov.uk)

Figure 26: Local Housing Allowance rates by BRMA
Local Housing Allowance rate at March 2023
BRMA Shared _ One Two Three Four

accommodation | bedroom bedroom bedroom bedroom
Shropshire £75.00 £92.05 £120.82 £143.84 £182.96
Black Country £60.18 £91.82 £117.37 £136.93 £172.60
Staffordshire North | £60.95 £86.30 £97.81 £126.58 £171.45
Klvoor{ﬁeSterSh're £66.50 £101.26 | £126.72 | £149.59 | £195.62

Source: Search for Local Housing Allowance rates by postcode or local authority : DirectGov -

LHA Rates (voa.gov.uk)

Demand for social housing

9.11. The report presented to this Committee in January 2023, provided in depth
information on the picture of social housing in Shropshire. It also discussed the
concept of housing need in the context of affordable housing and provided an
overarching definition of when a household is considered to be in housing need.
This being households who cannot access the open market to meet their housing
needs due to low incomes and/or vulnerability.

Page 17


https://lha-direct.voa.gov.uk/Search.aspx
https://lha-direct.voa.gov.uk/Search.aspx
https://lha-direct.voa.gov.uk/Search.aspx
https://lha-direct.voa.gov.uk/Search.aspx

9.12. The report referenced the Council's Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA)
2020 which identified a net current affordable housing need of 799 dwellings per
annum.

9.13. Figure 27 considers the net level of need from applicants on the Council’s housing
register by first choice parish by Place Plan Area. Net need has been determined
by assuming a 6% annual turnover (churn) of existing social housing stock at April
2022 and also the additional social housing developed over the period April to
December 2022. By far the greatest need is for the Shrewsbury Place Plan Area,
with demand from over 1,300 applicants.

Figure 27: Net current outstanding need from all applicants on the housing
register

1400

1200

1000

800

600

400

200 I I
. i
& »

Source: Shropshire HomePoint

9.14. If we only consider those applicants on the housing register who are in a reasonable
preference category as defined by the Housing Act 1996, then the highest level of
outstanding need for social housing is again the Shrewsbury Place Plan Area with
an outstanding need of almost 700 dwellings (Figure 28).

Figure 28: Net current outstanding need from reasonable preference category
applicants on the housing register

800
700
600
500
400
300

200 I
100 I
0 H TR
QA QX & & 8 2 S QO @ 2 A QA & o A
> Qf}é & & ° '{\‘@ $¢§° & & @Q} rgv’é ' \@6 V“& o ¥
O O NP G ING 2N @ & o C O @& o & \2\\%
& O S P T N
o & @& TP O T &
N S © O & O
N4 o) ® NI <
AN
&
&
Source: Shropshire HomePoint

Page 18



9.15. Figure 29 shows indicative gross need for affordable housing from the Housing
Needs Survey 2022, this being from existing and concealed households currently
living in Shropshire, by Place Plan Area. The Shrewsbury Plan Place Area
continues to be that in the highest need, followed by Ludlow and Bridgnorth.

Figure 29: Indicative gross need for Affordable Housing over next five years shown by
2022 Housing Needs Survey

450
400

350

300

250

200

150

E I I I I I

0 111

0 |

S PR N AN S F S S @2
53 S G F TN IS
S T NS o P 0 F S O
\QJ Q)&\ O%QQ’Q ?go\AQ’QSQQ‘(\\Q%
2 O & O ¥ @ GQ $‘G§\°
& N Q@ RS '3
@
&
&
Q\Q

Source: Housing Needs Survey 2022

10. Role of social housing

10.1. As shown by Figure 14, the proportion of social housing in Shropshire (this being
rented and low-cost home ownership housing) is 14%, which is lower than the
regional and England averages of 19% and 18% respectively. Although over the
ten-year period 2011-21 the numbers of social housing have increased, the
percentage of social housing has decreased in Shropshire, the West Midlands and
England over this period (in 2011 social housing as a proportion of all dwelling stock
for these geographies was 15%, 20% and 19% respectively'9).

10.2. It is also important to recognise that social housing is not solely “general needs”
accommodation but provides a range of supported housing solutions to meet the
needs of wlnerable people, for many of whom the Council has a statutory
responsibility to provide housing. The need for supported housing for single
vulnerable homeless households, including young people, has been exacerbated
following a number of housing providers deciding to decommission and dispose of
various specialist housing schemes despite the evidenced need for these to
continue to operate.

10.3. Figure 30 considers the affordability of accessing different tenures of housing in
Shropshire from the perspective of households on lower quartile and median
incomes. It indicates that households on lower quartile incomes are able to afford
social housing which is subject to a social rent; with social housing charged at
affordable rent not necessarily considered affordable, nor are private rented housing
at lower quartile rents. The Figure also indicates that households on median

10 2011 Census

Page 19



incomes may also often wish to access social housing as they are unable to access
owner occupation.

Figure 30: Affordability of accessing tenures in Shropshire

Income Required B Deposit =] ower Quartile === Median Income
£80,000
£60,000
£36,572
£40,000 .
£20,809
£20,000
) .
(£20,000) I I I
(£40,000)
X X (3 Q < QO < (4
\,\Q,(\ ,\Q,(\ ?}’0\ e&’b ?}Q,"o ’Z;‘\}\ Q/'\'Z’ Qj\’b% N
Ry o N & & & & N &
<° & & & & \2 ¥ ¥ )
Q\o N & \,‘Q/ \0$ <’ X X
X 2 < 2 < <
?5\ ’b\& & ’b\ N ’b\{-
\{_é,é @ @'D \{-?,}‘1 @ @
N \
N W
Source: CORE sub-national data dashboard user guide: 2020 to 2021 - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk),

Private rental market summary statistics in England - Office for National Statistics (ons.gov.uk), HM
Land Reqistry Open Data, and CACI Paycheck data 2022 - Gross Household Income

10.4. All Local Housing Authorities are required to have an allocations! policy, which
must comply with Part VI of the Housing Act 1996 (as amended by the Localism Act
2011) and associated statutory guidance on social housing allocations for local
authorities in England. In summary the guidance covers:

e who is eligible for allocation, this relates to immigration status;

e how local housing authorities can determine who can qualify for an allocation,
this can relate to local connection, financial resources and unacceptable
behaviour; and

e the categories of persons that an allocation scheme must give “reasonable
preference” to, this includes households who are homeless (not just those
considered to be statutory homeless), overcrowded households, persons with
medical and welfare needs, and those suffering from hardship as they need to
move to a particular locality.

10.5. The Council’s revised allocation policy and scheme which is due to be implemented
in June 2023 sets out Shropshire Council’'s policy for applications to the Housing
Register; the allocation of the housing stock owned by the Council, which is
managed by its Arm’s Length Management Organisation (ALMO), Shropshire

11 An allocation of accommodation under the Housing Act 1996 is when a person is selected to be a
council tenant or nominated to be a tenant of a private registered provider.

Page 2


https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/social-housing-lettings-in-england-april-2020-to-march-2021/core-sub-national-data-dashboard-user-guide-2020-to-2021
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/housing/datasets/privaterentalmarketsummarystatisticsinengland
https://landregistry.data.gov.uk/app/ppd/
https://landregistry.data.gov.uk/app/ppd/

10.6.

10.7.

10.8.

10.9.

10.10.

Towns and Rural (STAR) Housing; and nominations to Private Registered Providers
(housing associations and other housing providers registered with the Regulator of
Social Housing).

Nominations agreements are currently being agreed with all Private Registered
Providers; these require nominations to 100% of new homes delivered and a
minimum of 75% to existing homes.

As set out in January’s report, although Shropshire contains almost 20,000 social
housing dwelling, only 20% (just over 4,000) are in the Council’'s ownership. In the
main, council owned stock is located in the Oswestry and Bridgnorth geographical
areas of the authority. This is important to note, as unless the Council has
nomination agreements in place with the housing associations who own the
remaining 80%, itis unable to ensure that accommodation is allocated in line with
the Council’s allocation policy, to meet both evidenced need and our statutory
obligations.

The draft Local Plan seeks to deliver 350 affordable dwellings per annum. This
figure relates to an assessment of current and future site allocations, which
considers both viability for the provision of affordable housing and other obligations
and the likelihood of windfall and exception sites. Additional affordable housing is
provided on open market sites as a result of planning gain, on 100% affordable new
build developments (these can often be exception sites which are outside the
development boundary), or through change of tenure or planning use.

In addition to the need for additional general needs social housing, Shropshire has
gaps in the provision of supported housing for specific client groups including:

e people with multiple and complex needs at risk of rough sleeping — there is an
identified, evidenced need for a 24/7 supported accommodation scheme in
Shrewsbury, with associated move-on units;

e young people, including care leavers — there is an identified, evidenced need for
a 24/7 supported accommodation scheme in Shrewsbury, with associated move-
on units;

e people with learning disabilities and autism — a range of small to medium 24/7
supported schemes and dispersed dwellings are required across the authority;

e people with mental ill health - small supported schemes and dispersed dwellings;

e people fleeing domestic abuse — a small 24/7 supported specialist scheme and
dispersed dwellings;

e ex-offenders — move-on accommodation;

e older people — the provision of a range of sustainable options to meet aspirations
of local people linked to providing care and support, which could include
intergenerational living.

To address this range of need it is proposed to move to a strategic housing
commissioning model, whereby specific requirements for supported housing are set
out by the Local Housing Authority which, subject to procurement rules surrounding
support and care provision, Private Registered Providers (PRPs) are requested to
meet. The Council will itself work with STAR Housing utilising its landlord account
(the HRA) to deliver those supported housing priorities and associated move-on

Page 21



11.

11.1.

11.2.

accommodation where there is little to no delivery by PRPs. This is a strategic
approach to meet the Council’s statutory obligations.

Moving Forward

Members are asked to consider what additional evidence or data they require in
order to understand Shropshire’s housing market better.

In addition, set out below are suggested discussion topics relating to the cross-
tenure housing market which Members are asked to consider prior to a workshop to
be held in Summer 2023:

e Given the predicted ageing population (paragraph 5.4), how can housing
offer a solution to the likely need for more care and support provision, as well
as better options for affordable independent living for older people?

e How do we ensure that it is sustainable for people on low incomes to live in
rural areas where there is limited access to services (Figure 5)?

e Figure 10 shows the range of employment currently on offer in Shropshire. If
we want to support the economic success of our communities, how can
housing offer a solution?

¢ In absolute terms, the county town of Shrewsbury has the highest housing
needs for both general needs affordable and specialist supported housing,
what can Shropshire Council do to seek to meet this need, but also enable a
more balanced housing market across Shropshire?

List of Background Papers:

Communities and Overview Committee Report, Understanding the social housing market in
Shropshire, 25 January 2023

Local Member: All

Appendices: None

Page 22



	Agenda
	6 Social Housing In Context: Understanding Shropshire's Housing Market

